
   

ZONING CHANGE REVIEW SHEET 
 
CASE NUMBER: C14H-07-0035 HLC DATE: April 23, 2007 
 PC DATE:  June 12, 2007 
     
APPLICANT:  Steven and Lindsey Crow 
 
HISTORIC NAME:  Brogan House 
 
WATERSHED:  Waller Creek 
 
ADDRESS OF PROPOSED ZONING CHANGE:  3018 West Avenue 
 
ZONING FROM: SF-3-CO-NP TO:  SF-3-H-CO-NP 
 
SUMMARY STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends the proposed zoning 
change from single family residence, conditional overlay, neighborhood plan (SF-3-CO-
NP) district to single family residence, conditional overlay, neighborhood plan – Historic 
(SF-3-H-CO-NP) combining district zoning. 
 
HISTORIC LANDMARK COMMISSION ACTION:  Recommended the proposed zoning 
change from single family residence, conditional overlay, neighborhood plan (SF-3-CO-
NP) district to single family residence, conditional overlay, neighborhood plan – Historic 
(SF-3-H-CO-NP) combining district zoning.  Vote:  8-0 (Leary absent). 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION:  Recommended the proposed zoning change from 
single family residence, conditional overlay, neighborhood plan (SF-3-CO-NP) district to 
single family residence, conditional overlay, neighborhood plan – Historic (SF-3-H-CO-
NP) combining district zoning.  Vote: 9-0. 
 
DEPARTMENT COMMENTS:  The Brogan House is listed as a Priority 1 in the 
Comprehensive Cultural Resources Survey (1984). 
 
CITY COUNCIL DATE:  June 21, 2007   ACTION: 
 
ORDINANCE READINGS: 1ST  2ND 3RD    ORDINANCE NUMBER: 
 
CASE MANAGER:  Steve Sadowsky     PHONE:  974-6454 
 
NEIGHBORHOOD ORGANIZATION:  Heritage Neighborhood Association 
 
BASIS FOR RECOMMENDATION: 
The ca. 1906 Brogan House is an excellent example of vernacular Victorian residential 
architecture and has significant historical associations with Livingston Mays, a prominent 
Williamson County merchant who moved to Austin around 1896, and built this house in 
1906, and with Professor Albert P. Brogan who lived here from 1924 to 1981. 
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Architecture: 
One-story wing-and-gable plan frame house with a hipped roof, partial wraparound porch 
on plain square wood posts, single and paired 2:2 and 1:1 fenestration;  transom above the 
door, and hipped-roof central dormer containing twin vents; two-story rectangular-plan 
tower addition to the rear with a pyramidal metal-clad roof.  The house is in excellent 
condition and maintains its historic appearance. 
 
The Brogan House is an excellent example of a vernacular Victorian house, built by 
carpenters (rather than designed by an architect) incorporating popular elements of Queen 
Anne design onto smaller, more modest houses.  The wing-and-gable plan is a traditional 
building form, allowing for an expansive front porch, which is evident on the Brogan House, 
and simplified ornamentation in comparison to the overblown Victorian decoration of 
Queen Anne houses. 
 
Historical Associations: 
The house was built around 1906 for Livingston M. Mays, a prominent Round Rock 
merchant who also ran a quarry, lumberyard, and engaged in land speculation throughout 
the state.  Mays moved to Austin around 1897, first locating on Guadalupe Street, and 
establishing the Mays Seed and Grain Store.  Mays sold the property to their daughters in 
1910, but continued to live at the house until his death in 1914.  The Mays daughters 
contracted with Brydson Brothers Lumber Company to make renovations and 
improvements to the house in 1914, including a room and continuation of the porch on the 
south side.  From 1914 to 1917, they rented the house to Tecumseh H. Thompson, the chief 
deputy U.S. Marshal for the Western District of Texas; then to  Rev. Robert Ware Jopling, 
the pastor of the University Presbyterian Church, from 1917 to 1920.  The house was sold 
to T.R. Garth in 1919.  Garth, a professor of psychology at the University of Texas, was 
noted for his work with Native Americans.   Garth sold the property in 1923 to Albert 
Brogan, who received his undergraduate and graduate degrees from Harvard.  He was a 
professor of philosophy at the University of Texas and dean of the Graduate School from 
1936 to 1959.  The Brogans contracted with Brydson Lumber Company in 1933 to construct 
a room and bathroom, and renovate the interior of the house.  In 1948, the Brogans 
employed landscape architect Coatsworth Pinkney to develop their landscaping.  Dr. 
Brogan sold the house to Simon Atkinson in 1982.  Atkinson was the associate dean of the 
school of Architecture at the University of Texas.  Atkinson constructed the two-story post-
modern square tower with a pyramidal roof at the back of the house in 1983.  The house 
was sold in 1998 to the present owners, Steven and Lindsey Crow.  Dr. Steven Crow is a 
physician with the Peoples Clinic and the David Powell Clinic; Lindsey is triage nurse at 
Seton. 
 
PARCEL NO.:  02170208060000 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  Lot 40 and the north 11.5 feet of Lot 39, Outlots 72 and 75, 
Division D, Oakwood Addition 
  
ANNUAL TAX ABATEMENT: $5,619 (owner-occupied); city portion: $1,366 
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APPRAISED VALUE:  $370,981 
 
PRESENT USE:  Residence 
 
CONDITION:  Excellent 
 
PRESENT OWNER  
Steven and Lindsey Crow 
3018 West Avenue 
Austin, Texas 78705 
 
DATE BUILT:  ca. 1906 
 
ALTERATIONS/ADDITIONS:  Modifications to the front porch and the addition of a side 
room (1914); addition of a room and bathroom (1933); construction of a two-story tower 
(1983). 
 
ORIGINAL OWNER(S):  Livingston M. Mays (1906) 
 
OTHER HISTORICAL DESIGNATIONS:   None. 
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